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1.0 Background Details

1.1 The Leather Bottle Pub is situated at Shrub End Road, Colchester CO3
4RH. The premises is the holder of a premises licence number
004426. The Premises Licence Holder is Quire Build Limited,
registered at 44-50 High Street Rayleigh, Essex SS6 7EA. The
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) Is Ms Sally CROSBY.

2.0 Outline of the circumstances leading to the Summary Review.

2.1 Between June and November 2021 Essex Police has undertaken an
Operation to disrupt the supply of class A drugs (including Cocaine)
in and around the vicinity of the Leather Bottle. The operation
consists of 3 phases, phase 1 being the use of undercover (UC)
officers to observe and detect drug deals between June and
November 2021. Phase 2 is the working up if intelligence and
evidence. Phase 3 is the arrest of suspects, the execution of search
warrants and the further investigation of any additional matters
uncovered. Phase 3 began on 09/12/2021 and is ongoing.

2.2 During phase 1 3 UC officers known for the purpose of this
operation as Danny, Tom and Neil attended the Leather bottle on a
number of occasions between June and November 2021 and were

routinely offered or sold drugs as well as witnessing the open
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smoking of Cannabis in the pub garden. (The skeletal witness
statements from these UC officers are appendix A to C)

2.3 The Officers supervisor for this operation is Detective Sergeant
GILES and she has extensively collated and detailed the evidence
gathered and has presented it in her witness statement (appendix D)
In her statement she lists the following activities. These are briefly
outlined below.

2.4 Friday 25™ June 2021 a purchase of 3 x 0.5g of white powder was
made and following forensic examination this was confirmed as 1.27
grammes of cocaine 80% purity. The UCs were given the impression
that the “landlady” (Ms CROSBY) was aware of what was going on. It
was also noted that none of the regulated covid measures were in
place with customers ordering from the bar, not wearing masks and
not using track and trace.

2.5 On 29" June 2021 UCs attended the Leather Bottle and observed
one male openly talking about drug deals on his mobile while in the
pub, 2 males emerging from a single toilet cubicle and visibly
“tidying” their noses. Customers were observed smoking cannabis in
the garden.

2.6 On Wednesday 7" July 2021 a UC contacted a subject of
investigation and was advised that approximately 200 people were in
the pub and that business (drug supply) was good. Some cocaine was
obtained but not actually from the pub.

2.7 On Wednesday 16" July 2021 a female was openly discussing drug
use and was seen to pass a clip bag to another female. A purchase

was made from the female of 1.7g of white powder for £110. When

tested this was found to be cocaine with a 75% purity.
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2.8 On Thursday 22" July 2021 a purchase made from a car just outside
the pub car park.

2.9 On Thursday 29" July 2021males were observed snorting cocaine in
the toilets and a further purchase made by the UCs.

2.10 On Friday 13" August 2021 a purchase was made from inside the
pub

2.11 On Friday 27" August 2021 a purchase of cocaine from a vehicle
in the car park(described as in plain view) following some marketing
messages (these are listed in Appendix D)

2.12 On Friday 8™ October while in the pub arrangements were made
to purchase drugs from nearby on Straight Road.

2.13 On Thursday 12" October 2021 a UC was asked to go into the
toilets by a male and was offered a line of “coke”

2.14 On Wednesday 3™ November 2021 an arrangement was made in
the car park of the pub to purchase an ounce of cocaine and it was
agreed that this would take place the next day.

2.15 On Thursday 4" November 2021 the transaction was made near

the pub and once completed all parties returned to the pub.

3.0 Reasons for a Review

3.1 Where a drug supply offence is selling directly to users (as is this
case) — the UK Sentencing Council categorises this as ‘Category 3’ for
the purposes of sentencing, the starting point for those with a lesser
role is 3 years imprisonment and for those with a leading role 8 years

6 months imprisonment. These therefore are ‘serious crimes’ as set
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out within section 53A(4) of the Licensing Act 2003 which states a
‘serious crime’ has the same meaning as in Regulation of
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (s81(2) and (3) and which defines a
serious crime as one where a person who has attained the age of
twenty-one and has no previous convictions could reasonably be
expected to be sentenced to imprisonment for a term of three years
or more (...) or includes the use of violence etc...

3.2 The police belief is that the use of cocaine was so blatant and
conducted in plain sight. It was clear that management and staff
were not taking adequate steps to detect such activity and
insufficient procedures and policies were in place to prevent such
occurrences. The drug dealing was widespread (it took place on
each occasion the premises were visited) and conducted in the open.

3.3 Statutory Guidance to the Act lists the sale and distribution of
controlled drugs as criminal activity, which should be treated
particularly seriously and states that in such circumstances it is
expected that revocation of the licence should seriously be
considered.

3.4 It was felt therefore that it was therefore not appropriate to

proceed by way of normal review procedures, as a decision of the
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licensing sub-committee would not take effect for a considerable
period. A decision was therefore made to apply for a Summary
Review. In order to promote the Licensing Objectives

3.5 Paragraphs 12.5 and 12.16 of the Statutory Guidance details that
when sub- committees are considering interim steps then it must
consider whether it is appropriate or proportionate to impose
conditions as part of interim steps they should be wary of measures
that require significant cost and/or permanent adjustments to the
premises — measures that may be withdrawn at the subsequent full
review hearing. This was further reason why as initial interim steps it
was considered by Essex Police that suspension of the licence was
the most appropriate outcome to be sought.

3.6 Amongst the outcomes sought ahead of the full review hearing was
the immediate suspension of the premises licence to break the cycle
of offending by both displacing/deterring those taking drugs on the
premises and those using the premises as a drugs distribution
network.

3.7 There appeared to be either a complete lack of control of
management in providing measures to combat the supply of class A

drugs and the open use of cannabis use (class B) or that that the
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management was complicit in this and turned a “blind eye” It is the
contention of Essex Police that the Crime and disorder Licensing
Objective has been undermined.

3.8 Further evidence of poor management (should it be needed) was the
lack of the enforcement of the corona virus regulations when the
UCs first started their operation, this is further compounded by the
fact that the pub was in fact served a 2-day closure notice for similar
matters on 21/12/2020 (appendix E). Also worthy of note is the
incident dated Wednesday 7% July 2021 by Detective Sergeant GILES
involving basically a “brawl” in the car park between males. This was
never reported to Police by the DPS and it will be noted that when
she tried to intervene she was told by a male “NO ITS NOT, THIS IS
MY FUCKING PUB”. Perhaps most telling is that fact that no
customers reported the matter either suggesting either a general
acceptance of this type of violence or a culture of fear and
intimidation preventing reporting the matter to the Police. A further
assertion of the undermining of the Crime and Disorder Licensing

Obijective

4.0 Outcome sought at Full Hearing
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4.1 Essex Police sought at the initial Summary Review hearing that in
order to disrupt drug supply via this venue that its immediate closure
(by way of suspension as an interim step) was the most logical
approach. This would immediately server existing links with
customers that use the venue for drug taking and those that supply
drugs on the premises and provide an opportunity for the Premises
Licence Holder to take appropriate steps to prevent drug misuse
should the premises be permitted to re-open following any

suspension.

4.2 However, the Police contend that the weight of evidence provided
suggests that the problems associated with the venue run much
deeper and either by act or omission the Premises Licence Holder
(PLH) Quire Build Limited are as responsible as the DPS. Given that
according to Companies house (accessed 07/12/2021) Mr Paul Carey
HILLER appear to be both the Secretary and Director although
interestingly different addresses are registered. The Secretary’s
address is listed in Tolleshunt Knights and the Directors Position in
Fordham. Neither address is so far away as to prevent him fulfilling
his obligations under the licensing act as at 1.2 of the guidance states
The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four
statutory objectives which must be addressed when licensing
functions are undertaken. This must surely include the role of the

PLH
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4.3 The guidance acknowledges this at 11.22, Equally, it may emerge
that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises
supervisor may be an inadequate response to the problems
presented......

4.4  Paragraph 11.23 also contends that......But where premises are
found to be trading irresponsibly, the licensing authority should not
hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough action to tackle
the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed
insufficient, to revoke the licence.

4.5 The evidence presented and the subsequent arrests and seizures for
drug offences in and around the Leather Bottle that the Police would
contend that there has been a catastrophic failure of Premise
Management to uphold the Licensing Objectives and for that reason

we would seek revocation of the Premises Licence.

5.0 Case Law

5.1 Deterrence is an established part of the Licensing Act 2003 — see the
cases of R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates’ Court;
[2008] WLR (D) 350 and East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif
(Trading as Zara’s Restaurant and Takeaway), [2016} EWHC 1265
(Admin) where in both cases the High Court stated remedy of the harm
or potential harm is not the only consideration and that deterrence is an
appropriate consideration in dealing with reviews where there has been
activity in connection with crime. This also forms part of the reason
Essex Police has applied for a review of the premises licence.
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5.2 Deterrence as a legitimate consideration by a licensing sub-
committee has been considered before the High Court where remedial
measures (such as the imposition of additional conditions) were
distinguished from legitimate deterrent (punitive) measures such as
revocation.

5.3 R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates’ Court; [2008]
WLR (D) 350.

5.4 This was a case where a premises had sold alcohol to under age
persons and subsequently the licensing authority suspended the licence.
This was overturned on appeal to the Magistrates’ Court and
subsequently appealed to the High Court by the authority. The premises
licence holder argued that they had a policy in place for checking the age
of customers but this was not a perfect policy and had not been adhered
to and that rather than revoke the licence, instead stringent conditions
on proof of age should instead be imposed on the licence.

5.5 Issues considered in the Bassetlaw judgement included whether a
licensing authority was restricted to remedial action (as opposed to
punitive action such as revocation); and the precedence of wider
considerations than those relating to an individual holder of a premises
licence when certain criminal activities (as specified in the Guidance)
took place.

5.6 It specifically examined (and set aside in the case of ‘certain
activities’) those parts of the Guidance now contained within paragraph
11.20 and 11.23, viz.

5.7 In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that
licensing authorities should so far as possible seek to establish the cause
or causes of the concerns that the representations identify. The remedial
action taken should generally be directed at these causes and should
always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response to
address the causes of concern that instigated the review.

However, it will always be important that any detrimental financial
impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is
appropriate and proportionate to the promotion of the licensing
objectives.
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5.8 In her judgement, Mrs Justice Slade stated (at 32.1 & 33.1 of the
citation):

5.9 Where criminal activity is applicable, as here, wider considerations
come into play and the furtherance of the licensing objective engaged
includes the prevention of crime. In those circumstances, deterrence, in
my judgment, is an appropriate objective and one contemplated by the
guidance issued by the Secretary of State.(...) However, in my judgment
deterrence is an appropriate consideration when the paragraphs
specifically directed to dealing with reviews where there has been
activity in connection with crime are applicable.”

5.10 East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif (Trading as Zara’s
Restaurant and Takeaway), [2016] EWHC 1265 (Admin)

5.11 This is a recent High Court decision (published April 2016) which
related to the employment of an illegal worker and where a prosecution
for such had not been instigated.

5.12 Amongst other matters it had been argued for the premises licence
holder that the crime prevention objective was not engaged where a
prosecution or conviction for a crime was not in place at the time of the
licensing hearing. The case reaffirmed the principle that a responsible
authority need not wait for the licensing objectives to be undermined,
and that in considering whether the crime prevention objective has been
engaged a prospective consideration (i.e. what is likely to happen in the
future) of what is warranted is a key factor.

5.13 It also reaffirmed the case of Bassetlaw in concluding that
deterrence is a legitimate consideration of a sub-committee.

Mr Justice Jay stated: “The question was not whether the respondent
had been found guilty of criminal offences before a relevant tribunal, but
whether revocation of his licence was appropriate and proportionate in
the light of the salient licensing objectives, namely the prevention of
crime and disorder. This requires a much broader approach to the issue
than the mere identification of criminal convictions. It is in part
retrospective, in as much as antecedent facts will usually impact on the
statutory question, but importantly the prevention of crime and disorder
requires a prospective consideration of what is warranted in the public
interest, having regard to the twin considerations of prevention and
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deterrence. In any event, | agree with Mr Kolvin that criminal convictions
are not required.” (Paragraph 18)

5.14 Mr Justice Jay added: “Having regard in particular to the twin
requirements of prevention and deterrence, there was in my judgment
only one answer to this case. The respondent exploited a vulnerable
individual from his community by acting in plain, albeit covert, breach of
the criminal law. In my view his licence should be revoked.” (Paragraph
This case affirms the fact that the sub-committee are able to take
measures to ensure that other premises at deterred from operating in
such a way that the licensing objectives are not upheld.
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WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

URN

Statement of: DANNY

Age if under 18: Over 18 (ifover18insert ‘over18’) Occupation: Law Enforcement Officer

This statement (consisting of page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully
stated in it anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature:......... DaNNY ... (witness) Date:

| am a serving Law Enforcement Officer within the United Kingdom, and | am trained and
authorised to take part in Undercover Operations. For the purposes of this operation | shall be

known as DANNY.

During this operation | have been using a mobile phone, telephone number ******xkixkx

On FRIDAY 25t JUNE 2021 | deployed into COLCHESTER area of ESSEX with NEIL and
TOM at approximately 16:30 hours. At approximately 18:40 hours we attended the LEATHER
BOTTLE on SHRUB END ROAD COLCHESTER. On entering the premises, it was evident
nobody was wearing masks and the only way to get service was to order at the bar. We sat
outside and were talking to other customers from the pub. Some time later all three of us were
round the pool table. | met a male there who told me his name was “*****” | would describe
CARDIFF as being a light skinned black male, 30-35 years old, around 6-foot-tall and of a
medium build. He had short afro hair no longer than 4cm that appeared well kept. He had a
short patchy beard, no longer than 2cm. He was not wearing any sort of glasses. He was
wearing an unusual dark purple t-shirt that had writing on it saying PORTLAND, OREGON. He
had a distinctive black bum bag that he wore around his waist the whole time, dark coloured

jeans and white trainers. | will refer to him as CARDIFF.

We remained at the pool table until we left the pub. A female named ***** also introduced

herself and CARDIFF said this was his girlfriend. | would describe her as a white female, around
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22-26 years old. She had shoulder length blonde hair, light skin, very white teeth and was well
presented. She was wearing a black top and tight black jeans. She had an unusual accent that |
could not say what it was, but | heard her saying to TOM that she had travelled around when
she was younger because her dad was in the army. | will refer to her as DORSET. | did not hear
the beginning of the conversation, but at one point, CARDIFF was talking with DORSET and
turned to others around him and said words to the effect of, “WHO WOULD WANT TO STEAL A
NISSAN MICRA?” It was clear from this conversation that DORSET’s car was a NISSAN
MICRA.

During a game of pool between CARDIFF and TOM, CARDIFF said to TOM he needed to sort
something out. | did not pick up on the rest of the conversation, but he left to go outside. A short
time later, CARDIFF returned and went into the toilets. There was a clear buzz around the pub
as other persons also entered into the toilet area. | couldn’t say for sure how many but at least
four persons seemed to go towards the toilet including TOM. At some point during this NEIL and
| left and went outside. This was around 21.45 hours. | noted it was strange as the staff had

turned off almost all the lights and clearly wanted everyone gone from the pub.

TOM and CARDIFF joined us outside the premises. | noted during this that CARDIFF had a
small black burner style mobile phone that stood out. He said to TOM that he was living very
nearby and gestured towards GOSBECKS ROAD. TOM, NEIL and | left on foot at around
22.05hrs. TOM told us he had bought some cocaine from CARDIFF as we were leaving the
pub. Shortly afterwards we drove past the TEXACO GARAGE on SHRUB END ROAD. As we
drove past, | noticed a light-coloured NISSAN MICRA parked at the side of the forecourt nearest

the road. This was around 22.10hrs.
I would estimate | saw CARDIFF for around 30 minutes. This was on and off over approximately
an hour and a half period. The pub was well lit, and my view at times whilst he was playing pool

was unobstructed.

This statement has been produced from my original notes made on 25t June 2021.
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WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

URN

Statement of: TOM

Age if under 18: Over 18 (ifover18insert ‘over18’) Occupation: Law enforcement officer

This statement (consisting of page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully
stated in it anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature:...........cc...... TOM.eeiee e (witness) Date:

| am a serving Law Enforcement Officer within the United Kingdom, and | am trained and
authorised to take part in Undercover Operations. For the purposes of this operation | shall be

known as TOM.

During this operation | have been using a mobile phone, telephone number *****x*kxkx

On FRIDAY 25™ JUNE 2021 | deployed into COLCHESTER town centre at approximately
16:30 hours with NEIL and DANNY. At approximately 18:20 hours we made our way to the
LEATHER BOTTLE in SHRUB END COLCHESTER.

| purchased three beers then myself and NEIL sat outside talking to another customer from the
pub. After some time, | then went to the toilet and began talking to some other male customers
in the pub. Myself and NEIL were invited over to a seating area adjacent to the pool table. There
| met a male named “**** | will refer to him as CARDIFF. | would describe CARDIFF as
approximately 6 ftin height, medium athletic strong build. He had black afro hair, with facial hair
and was wearing a purple and yellow T-shirt with the lettering ‘PORTLAND, OREGAN, on the
front of it. He went on to say that he was 33 years of age. He later gave his name as *****
Freekxkkekk whilst playing pool CARDIFF introduced me to his girlfriend **** who | would describe
as approximately 56 in height, of slim build with shoulder length straight blonde hair. She had
very white skin with blue eyes and big white teeth. She had an English accent which she
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described as a mixture of Cypriot, German and Essex due to her father being in the armed
services and having to move around a lot when she was a child. | will refer to her as DORSET.
Upon completing a game of pool with CARDIFF he said words to the affect of “HE NEEDED TO
SORT OUT SOME COKE” which | took to mean cocaine. | then took the opportunity to ask him
to sort me out with some cocaine and | requested three deals from him. CARDIFF said that he
would have to go to DORSETS vehicle which he identified as a NISSAN MICRA. CARDIFF then
approached DORSET who was conversing with NEIL and asked for her car keys. DORSET
handed CARDIFF the keys and CARDIFF exited the pub. When CARDIFF returned, he went
into the men’s toilets whilst | sat and talked to DORSET. | then entered the toilets and spoke to
CARDIFF through the closed cubical door. CARDIFF eventually opened the door after diving
the powder into the clip seal bags. | saw four clear plastic clip seal bags containing white
powder substance. | believed this to be cocaine. We talked about the price of the deals and
CARDIFF stated each was £50 and that it was “BANGING”. | asked if he was doing deals and
he said no. | asked CARDIFF if he would take £100 and he refused. | asked him to meet me in
the middle at £125 which he was happy with. | asked him to hand me the three clip seal bags
containing the white substance so | could inspect them which he did at 21:45 hours. | produced
this as my exhibit TOM/25062021/2145 — 3 x clip seal bags containing white powder. Once |
was happy, | handed him £125. CARDIFF retained a fourth clip seal bag with white substance
within and we exited the men’s toilets. The pub was closing so we took our drinks to the car
park and CARDIFF gave me his mobile number as Q7********** He asked me to call him and he

then saved my number to his burner style mobile phone.

| spent a total of approximately one hour and thirty minutes with CARDIFF being within one foot

of him at the closest.

At 22:15 hours we exited the Leather bottle.

This statement has been produced from my original notes made on 25t June 2021.
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WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

URN

Statement of: NEIL

Age if under 18: Over 18 (ifover18insert ‘over18’) Occupation: Law enforcement officer

This statement (consisting of page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully
stated in it anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature:............... NEIL. ... (witness) Date: 30t November 2021

| am a serving Law Enforcement Officer within the United Kingdom, and | am trained and
authorised to take part in Undercover Operations. For the purposes of this operation, | shall be

known as NEIL.

During the period between 7t July 2021 and 10t November 2021 | deployed into
COLCHESTER area of ESSEX with fellow Under Cover Operatives for Operation Monaco 21.

Over this period of time, | have witnessed a number of occurrences at Public Houses within the
Colchester area as part of the deployment activity. In respect of those occurrences at The
LEATHER BOTTLE, SHRUB END ROAD, COLCHESTER. | will document the following: -

On 25t June 2021, at 18.40 hours | attended the above location, at this time Government
Covid restrictions were in place, there was no table service, none of the staff were wearing
masks and there were no restrictions in place. A male who gave his name as Nigel, was helping
behind the bar, he seemed to be a local male.

I met with some males who were in the pub garden who invited me and my colleagues to go
inside and play pool. All of these males were clearly well known and friendly with the bar staff.
One of these males supplied Class A drugs to my colleague inside the toilet.

| was made aware of who the landlady of the pub was, she was referred to as Sally, mid 50’s,

5’8, short grey hair, very pale slim.

000018



On 17t July 2021, at 18.15 | attended the above location with a colleague. We sat outside in
the pub garden next to 2 females one of which offered to supply us with Class A drugs. She was
wondering around, on the phone, and confirmed it would be 20 minutes. She then walked over
to a group of lads, sitting a little way from us. She got one of these lads, who seemed quite
young 19 or 20 years old. He came over and sat next to me, he had a black man bag, he
produced a clip seal bag of powder, which he exchanged for cash. (this is confirmed as

cocaine).

On 22nd July 2021, at 18.40 | attended the above location with my colleagues. At 19.32 hours |
made a call to the male who had supplied me with class A drugs on 17t July. This male said he
would come to me at the pub to supply more class A drugs. This male arrived outside the pub at

21.05 and supplied one bag of white powder to me (this is confirmed as cocaine).

On 29t July 2021, at 18.00 hours | attended the above location with my colleagues. | made a
call to the male who had supplied class A drugs to me on 17t July and 22nd July. This male
arrived at the pub at 20.08 hours and met with me outside, he supplied me with a bag of white
powder. (this is confirmed as cocaine). On supplying me with the drugs, an older male in his
early 40’s who was sat in the main pub walked out to meet with the male | was meeting, the two
males acknowledged each other and the deal that was taking place, when the older male
walked back into the pub, he stated to me” he’s my boy”. | have seen this older male sitting with

the landlord Sally previously on attending the pub.

13t August 2021, at 19.15 hours | attended the above location with my colleagues. Whilst at
the bar area, a male who | had seen in the pub before asked me if | wanted to buy cocaine, he
informed me that it would be £40 per bag, | agreed. This male called over another regular who |
had seen in the pub before and went with both males to the pub garden where male 2 provided
me with 2 bags of white powder. (this is confirmed as cocaine). Both males appeared to be
very well known by others in the pub including the staff and landlady and | had seen them on

several occasions before in the pub.

000019



On 20t August 2021, at 18.00 hours | attended the above location. | saw at the pub, both of
the men from 29t July 2021, sitting together with the landlady Sally and a few other people
within the pub.

| joined the group it was clear they were all well known to each other.

On 27t August 2021, at 18.10 hours | attended the above location with my colleagues. There
were a number of males | recognised and being there on a regular basis. One of which was the
male from 13 August 2021 who supplied class A drugs to me. As soon as | saw this male and
sat down, he asked if | wanted to purchase drugs. This male offered to sell 3 tickets (wraps of
cocaine, generally each ticket is 0.5 of a gram) for £100, | handed him the money and he got up
and walked away from the table, as he did so he passed another table of people and was given
a car key by one of the males sitting there, he then left my view, roughly 5 minutes later he
returned. He then handed me 3 bags of white powder (this is confirmed as cocaine).

This male was in-between tables and in and out of pub.

On 10t September 2021, at 19.40 hours | attended the above location with my colleague. On
arriving at the location, |1 met with the male who supplied me class A drugs on 13t August 2021.
He asked me if | wanted to purchase any drugs, which on this occasion | declined. This male
explained that the pub was quite because of what happened last night. He told me a young lad

had been “cut” but did not go into detail.

On 12th October 2021, at 18.20 hours | attended the above location with my colleague. Within
the pub was the male from 13t August 2021. He was sat with a number of regulars in the pub.
He asked me if | wanted to buy any drugs, on this occasion | declined.

Thorough my deployments at this location, the taking and supplying of drugs appeared to be
accepted and well known by the staff and landlady, also those supplying and dealing in these

drugs were closely associated with the landlady.

My original notes were made after each deployment.
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OFFICIAL MG11 (Interactive)

Page 1 of 9

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r. 16.2;Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

URN

Statement of: Louise GILES

Age if under 18: over 18 (if over 18 insert ‘over 18)  Occupation: Detective Sergeant

This statement (consisting of 9 page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and
belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have
wilfully stated in it anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature:......5...:’....?’.‘:1‘9}.?.’ .......................................................... (witness) Date: 23/11/2021

This statement relates to disorderly conduct and other criminal activity witnessed within and
connected to, THE LEATHER BOTTLE PUBLIC HOUSE on SHRUB END ROAD,
COLCHESTER during a proactive operation — OP MONACO 21.

| am the deputy investigative lead for the proactive operation referred to as OP MONACO which
has been conducted to investigate and address serious violence within the night time economy
and the supply of Class A drugs, namely cocaine, within the town of COLCHESTER, ESSEX
and took place between the dates of JUNE and NOVEMBER 2021.

Several subjects have been identified in relation to the supply of Class A drugs which has
occurred primarily in and around THE LEATHER BOTTLE PUBLIC HOUSE on SHRUB END

ROAD. The arrest phase has not yet concluded at the time of writing this statement.

| have collated information relating to the experiences of undercover operatives deployed into
THE LEATHER BOTTLE PUBLIC HOUSE and reference them below. At the commencement of
this operation, COVID regulations were in force and included capacity limits, social distancing
guidance, rule of six or two households at one table, use of face coverings in public spaces, the
necessity to order, eat and drink whilst seated and a legal requirement to check into venue on
the track and trace app. | am aware most covid restrictions were lifted from the 19t July 2021.
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Drugs activity and Controlled purchases of Cocaine relating to the LEATHER BOTTLE

On Friday 25" JUNE 2021 operatives deployed into THE LEATHER BOTTLE PUBLIC HOUSE.
Within the venue customers were ordering from the bar and there was no table service or other
covid restrictions in place. No one was wearing masks and there was no requirement to register
with the track and trace app. During the night one subject of the investigation advised an
operative, after meeting him on that evening for the first time, that he needed to ‘SORT OUT
SOME COKE'. He went to the pub toilets with the operative and divided the cocaine into bags
within the mens toilet cubicle. The operatives formed the impression that that the landlady saw
everything that was going on.

During the evening, a controlled purchase of 3 x 0.5g of white powder was made and following
forensic examination this is confirmed as 1.27g Cocaine 80% purity.

On 29™ JUNE 2021 undercover operatives deployed into THE LEATHER BOTTLE PUBLIC

HOUSE. They observed that the toilet area was very busy with pairs of males sharing the toilet
cubicle and visibly tidying their noses up as they left, suggesting the use of cocaine. There was
one male was loudly discussing illicit drugs over the phone in the pub. They also observed that

customers were smoking cannabis outside the pub.

On WEDNESDAY 7t JULY 2021 one of the operatives contacted a subject of the investigation
over the phone. He advised the operative that on Saturday (3" JULY) there were approximately
200 people in the leather bottle and that business (meaning the supply of cocaine) had been
good. A purchase of cocaine was made on this date from a subject of the investigation; however
this was not made from the leather bottle but from the subjects address a short drive away.
Forensic examination shows at 0.35g Cocaine, 80% purity. The operative was also advised that
the week prior, one of the regulars had been asked by the land lady SALLY to ris of the locals

so they could have a lock in.

On FRIDAY 16" JULY 2021 whilst in the LEATHER BOTTLE the undercover operatives were in
discussion with a female who was openly discussing recreational drug use and was seen to
pass a small clip seal bag to another female who then walked into the pub. The female later
facilitated the purchase of 1.7g of white powder for £110. A male subject of the investigation sat
next to the operatives on the bench in the seating area within the car park of the pub and

¢7 76025
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exchanged a clip seal bag of cocaine for the money. When tested was identified to be Cocaine

75% purity with Phenacetin.

On THURSDAY 22" JULY 2021 a further purchase of 1.7g of COCAINE for £110 was made
from a subject of the investigation in a vehicle just outside the car park of the LEATHER

BOTTLE around 2100 hours. This has been forensically examined and is 1.62g of Cocaine 77%
purity.

On THURSDAY 29" JULY 2021 undercover operatives deployed into THE LEATHER BOTTLE.
After a short time one of them went into the male toilets where they withessed two males in the
toilet snorting cocaine. Around 2000 hours a subject of the investigation arrived at the pub and
arranged to meet the undercover operative at the back of the car park in order for the operatives
to purchase Cocaine. A purchase of 1.7g was made for £110. Forensic examination shows this
to be 1.47g Cocaine of 79% purity. The operative noted that the male who supplied the cocaine
seemed to be there specifically to make the deal and in fact that he was working for another

male, also present on the evening who was more in control of the deal.

A controlled purchase of Cocaine was made on FRIDAY 13" AUGUST from within the
LEATHER BOTTLE. An operative was having a conversation with a subject of the investigation
within the bar area of the pub who stated that he had cocaine on him and the operative could
have some if they liked. This offer was declined at the time. The subject then asked if the
operative wanted to buy any and subsequently referred the operative to another subject who
produced two clip seal bags of white powder and exchanged this for £80. Forensic examination

shows this to be 0.8g (total) of cocaine at 39% purity with boric acid.

On FRIDAY 27t AUGUST 2021 whilst in the LEATHER BOTTLE verbal arrangements were
made for an undercover operative to make a controlled purchase of COCAINE from a subject of
the investigation, following some marketing messages that were sent advertising the sale of
Cocaine. The subject of the investigation was witnessed to go into a vehicle within the car park,
he then returned to the pub where he passed three clip seal bags containing powder cocaine to
the undercover operative. This was done whilst the operative was sat in the front garden of the
pub and is described to be in plain view of others. Forensic examination has identified this to be
0.9g Cocaine (total) at 80% purity.
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On FRIDAY 8" OCTOBER undercover operatives were within the LEATHER BOTTLE PUBLIC
HOUSE when they made contact over the phone with a subject of the investigation that they
had previously met through THE LEATHER BOTTLE. Arrangements were made to meet the
subjects a short walk from the LEATHER BOTTLE on STRAIGHT ROAD in order that a
purchase of cocaine could be made. This transaction took place and three clip seal bags of

cocaine were passed to the operatives for £100.

On TUESDAY 12t OCTOBER 2021 undercover operatives deployed to THE LEATHER
BOTTLE PUBLIC HOUSE. During the evening, one subject of the investigation, whilst playing
pool, requested that the operative followed him to the toilet. Once within the cubicle the subject
of the investigation took out a plastic bag containing white powder and offered the operative a
line of cocaine saying words to the effect of “I JUST WANT TO OFFER YOU A LINE OF COKE.
YOU'RE NOT POLICE ARE YOU?”

On WEDNESDAY 3 NOVEMBER an undercover operative met a subject of the investigation in
the car park of the LEATHER BOTTLE where a request was made for the purchase of 1 ounce
of cocaine. The purchase was arranged the following day (THURSDAY 4" NOVEMBER 2021)
and the initial meeting point was set by the subject of the investigation, to be THE LEATHER
BOTTLE at a specific time on 04/11/21, the operative met the subject of the investigation within
the pub and they both walked across the road to the TEXACO garage opposite the pub where
they met a further subject of the investigation who supplied the operative with 1 ounce of
Cocaine from within a vehicle in exchange for £1400. The parties all returned to the LEATHER

BOTTLE following the exchange.

Once within the LEATHER BOTTLE on 4" NOVEMBER 2021 an operative witnessed an
exchange of white powder made between a subject of the investigation and a customer. The
operative then held a conversation with another customer who asked the operative if he knew
any Romanian sex workers, he also said that he would be able to source up to 5 KG of cocaine
through some contacts that he knew. This same subject then took the operative into he toilet of
the pub offered the operative white powder expected to be cocaine from a key and then

proceeded to snort this in front of the operative.
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Marketing messages

Subsequent to associations made at the leather bottle, subjects of the investigation have

proactively sent marketing messages to undercover operatives as follows:

On FRIDAY 23th AUGUST a text message sent read “LAST BIT THERE 1.8 FOR 120,
BANGING STUFF”.

At 2004 HOURS on 22/08/2021 a text message sent read “SORRY ABOUT OTHER DAY
MATE | WAS MESSED ABOUT ON MY RELOAD IM BACK IN BUSINESS”.

At 2138 HOURS on 22/08/2021 a message received read “THE BEST GEAR IN TOWN
LANDED NO DEALS ON THIS ONE DROPS ALL NIGHT GET AT ME”.

At 0041 HOURS on 24/08/2021 received message read “THE BEST IS IN DROPS ALL
NIGHT”.

At 0041 HOURS on 24/08/2021 received message read “ITS FLYING OFF DROPS ALL
NIGHT”.

At 0151 HOURS on 25/08/2021 received message read “TOP STUFF IN GENTS DROPS
FROM NOW TILL MORNING”.

At 0937 HOURS on 24" SEPTEMBER 2021 message received read “BACK AT IT WITH THAT
10/10. DOING DROP OFFS”.

Disorderly / violent conduct

On WEDNESDAY 7 JULY 2021 a fight broke out in the car park of the leather bottle. Two

undercover operatives were present and gave accounts.

One heard a disturbance and a several people shouting, he then witnessed a fight break out

between two white adult males. Several other customers from the pub also became involved in

Z> He15
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the fight which happened on the floor of the car park behind a parked car. This disturbance

lasted 5 minutes and the fight lasted around 2-3 minutes. One of the males got into a vehicle —

a blue van which he drove off at speed, narrowly missing several customers.

Another gives an account that the fight occurred between a regular (REGULAR) and a male
from the travelling community who | will refer to as FIGHTING MALE. FIGHTING MALE pushed
the REGULAR in the chest and the REGULAR then punched FIGHTING MALE, they both then
unleashed a barrage of punches on each other and then grappled with each other banging into
a white mini coper and then onto the ground. One of FIGHTING MALE’s associates picked up a
wooden handle and began waving it about. SALLY the landlady ran out and tried to stop the
fighting telling the locals to get in the pub. The operative then heard the FIGHTING MALE shout
‘THIS IS OUR PUB”. SALLY replied with words to the effect of “NO ITS NOT, THIS IS MY
FUCKING PUB.” FIGHTING MALE and two associates then got back into their small van. Five
of the Eastern European males who were friends of the regular then approached the passenger
window of the van where the traveller was sat and started punching him through the window,
they then went on to damage the van by pulling the nearside wing mirror off the van as well as
trying to damage the front windscreen and damaged the near side front passenger door as well
as the nearside passenger window. The driver of this van then put it into reverse and reversed
at speed without any care for any of the pedestrians stood near it. They then drove a few feet
forward turned around and drove back towards the same pedestrians who they had tried to
reverse over luckily without making contact with anyone. They then drove off out of view. The
undercover operative tried to encourage the regular to leave, the regular said “WE EITHER
NEED TO GET TOOLED UP OR NEED TO FUCK OFF.”

On FRIDAY 16" JULY 2021 an undercover operative held a conversation with a male whom
they recognised as a customer from the LEATHER BOTTLE (CUSTOMER 1). They discussed a
fight which they had both witnessed outside of the LEATHER BOTTLE the week prior. The
other customer stated that he had since spoken with a Turkish male who was a friend and
customer at the LEATHER BOTTLE PUB, they had discussed whether more fights were likely
to occur, and the Turkish male had pulled up his top showing him (the other customer) a gun he

carried in his waistband and indicated he was ready if there was more trouble.
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On THURSDAY 29t JULY 2021 an undercover operative held a conversation with a male

customer at the pub and they were discussing the aforementioned fight that had taken place,
the customer (CUSTOMER 2) went on to say that the TURKISH/KURDS who helped JOSH
during the fight were ready for the men from the travelling community if they attended again. He

stated that every one of them had handguns in the waist bands of their trousers.

On FRIDAY 13" AUGUST whilst sat in the garden area of the pub, one customer (CUSTOMER
3) informed an undercover operative that a fight which occurred a few weeks prior had involved
some Kurdish males and some men from the travelling community, he stated a few days after
the fight he had gone to meet with the travellers and sorted things with them. He said he had
arranged for their van to be repaired and there would be no further issues. that the Kurdish
males had returned following the fight and had shooters on them in case any trouble occurred.

On FRIDAY 3 SEPTEMBER 2021 one subject of the investigation spoke to an operative over
the phone, he informed him that during the world cup final the LEATHER BOTTLE was crazy,
really busy, he did very good business that night (referring to the supply of cocaine) but when

England started losing everyone started fighting which was bad for busines.

Crime report 42/192816/21 is a grievous bodily harm with intent offence which occurred at THE
LEATHER BOTTLE on the 9" SEPTEMBER 2021. This is currently being investigated outside
of OP MONACO. The circumstances of the offence are that the victim was approached by two
suspects who were drinking at benches outside of the pub, one suspect punched the victim and

the other smashed a glass in his face causing significant facial injuries.

Summary

The LEATHER BOTTLE PUBLIC HOUSE is arguably the heart of a large-scale cocaine supply
business and is pivotal in the success of the sale of the drugs for this particular group of
subjects.

The venue is frequently used by the customer base of the supply group — the users, as a place
to successfully obtain Cocaine and make associations to do so. This is evidenced by the
undercover operatives who were able to make purchases with ease from deployments into the
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public house but also due to the nature of the conversation they have been involved in and

overheard whilst in the pub.

It is also evident that customers of the LEATHER BOTTLE PUBLIC HOUSE are able to openly
take illicit drugs within the venue; in full view of any other customers, with a blind eye turned by
the management and license holders. On a multitude of occasions, the operatives have been
offered cocaine from subjects and other customers within the pub, this has occurred openly in

the venue, even in front of the bar.

Subijects of the investigation were witnessed to advertise their merchandise within the venue,
make exchanges and also build associations. Therefore, growing their customer base,
encouraging sales and enhancing the success of their business. The nature of their business
being the supply of illicit drugs is abundantly clear. Throughout the investigation, it has become
apparent that a lot of the activity, both wholesale and local dealing, is conducted from the pub —
an environment where families and members of the public are likely socialising in at the same

time.

Many of the subjects of the investigation have served operatives with drinks or cleared table
throughout the operation, despite them not being bar staff. This suggests a high level of
familiarity with the management and exchanges of favours.

Disorderly behaviour has occurred within the pub grounds on a number of occasions that
operatives were present. Of significance the fight that occurred on the 7t JULY remains
unreported to the police, this is indicative that police records are not representative of the true
events within the pub. Conversations that the undercover operatives have subsequently had
suggest the involved parties have links to firearms and are prepared for significant levels of

violence.

Customers regularly use vehicles to get to and from the pub and on occasions these have been
seen to be driven in an unsafe and erratic manner causing a risk to other road users and
pedestrians. SALLY, the landlady’s vehicle is a white mini, through the course of the
investigation this has been witnessed by the undercover operatives to be used by a subject of
the investigation, to convey his 8 year old child. He is not insured or legally able to drive this
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vehicle due to disqualification and SALLY’s involvement in this suggests that she is complicit in

unlawful activity occurring.

If the LEATHER BOTTLE PUBLIC HOUSE is permitted to continue its business in the same
way it is currently being managed, then this will allow the supply of Class A drugs, disorderly

behaviour, violence and risk to the personal safety of customers and local residents to remain.
%7' 76025
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@ Colchester Borough Council

Colchester
o The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Local Authority
Enforcement Powers and Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020 SI. 2020 No. 1375

CORONAVIRUS IMMEDIATE RESTRICTION NOTICE
Notice Number: CIRNOO1 / KXP
Date: 21/12/2020
Part A

To: Sally Ann Crosby

Trading as: The Leather Bottle

At: Shrub End Road, Colchester CO3 4RH
Of: Quirebuild Limited

This Coronavirus Immediate Restriction Notice is served under regulation 4 of The Health Protection
(Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Local Authority Enforcement Powers and Amendment) (England)
Regulations 2020 (the Regulations) and comes into effect immediately.

I, Kate Pearsall, designated for the purposes of the Regulations by Colchester Borough Council, have
reasonable grounds for believing that you are contravening relevant statutory provisions in
circumstances that make it likely that the contraventions will continue or be repeated and those
contraventions involve, or would involve if continued or repeated, arisk of exposure to coronavirus

This is set out in Part B below.

| believe that it is necessary and proportionate to issue this Coronavirus Immediate Restriction Notice
to prevent continued or repeated contravention of those provisions as the contravention involves, or
would involve if continued or repeated, arisk of exposure to coronavirus.

Part B. Contravention of the restrictions
Statutory provisions contravened:
The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (All Tiers) (England) Regulations 2020

Schedule 2 paragraph 14 - Requirement to close businesses selling alcohol of consumption on the
premises

14. (1) A person responsible for carrying on a business of a public house, bar or other business
involving the provision of alcohol for consumption on the premises must cease to carry on that
business, unless sub-paragraph (2) applies.

(2) This sub-paragraph applies if alcohol is only served for consumption on the premises as part of
a table meal, and the meal is such as might be expected to be served as breakfast, the main midday
or main evening meal, or as a main course at such a meal.

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Obligations of Undertakings)
(England) Regulation 2020
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Section 1A. (1A) (a)(ii) & (1A) (b)(ii)

(1A) Apersonwho operates or occupiesrelevant premises in the Tier 2 area must, during the emer-

gency period, take all reasonable measures to ensure that —

(a)no bookings are accepted
(hfor agroup of more than six, where the groupis to be located outdoors, unless one of the
exceptions in paragraph 4 of Schedule 2 to the Principal Regulations applies;
(iforagroup of two or more persons to be located indoors at the premises unless
one of the exceptions in paragraph 4 or 5 of Schedule 2 to the Principal Regula-

tions applies;

(b)no persons are admitted to the premisesin -
(i)a group of more than six, where the group is to be located outdoors, unless one of the
exceptions in paragraph 4 of Schedule 2 to the Principal Regulations applies, or
(ilagroup of two or more persons, where the group is to be located indoors, unless
one of the exceptions in paragraph 4 or 5 of Schedule 2 to the Principal Regula-

tions applies;

Particulars of the contravention:

Colchester Borough Council and Essex Police visited the premises on 19.12.2020 at 20.00 and
witnessed the following:

e 10 people seated indoors around tables that had been pushed together. All were drinking
alcohol and were not eating. All from various households.

o Approximately 15 persons in the games area playing pool and drinking alcohol.

e Staff members not wearing masks or face coverings and no other physical barriers were in
place at the bar
Sally Ann Crosby (Designated Premises Supervisor) told the officer that the people seated were
regulars and celebrating a birthday and that there had been a buffet. They had then moved the
tables together in order to sit next to each other. Sally Ann Crosby stated that she had told the
people playing pool that they should leave, but that they did not listen to her.

Part C. Action required

This Coronavirus Immediate Restriction Notice requires that you close the premises and remedy
the above contraventions and ensure that the contraventions will not be repeated.

You must complete a, b, c and d shown below:
a. You must not accept any bookings or admit any persons to the premises in a group of two or
more persons, where the group is to be located indoors, unless one of the exceptions in
paragraph 4 or 5 of Schedule 2 to the Principal Regulations applies.
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b. You must not serve alcohol for consumption on the premises unless it is part of atable meal
and the meal is such as might be expected to be served as breakfast, the main midday or
main evening meal, or as a main course at such a meal.

c. You must display a notice stating that any person present at Leather Bottle is required to
wear a face covering under the Health Protection (Coronavirus, Wearing of Face Coverings
in a Relevant Place) Regulations 2020 unless an exemption under those Regulations applies
to the person or the person has areasonable excuse under those Regulations not to wear a
face covering; or take other measures to ensure that any person who enters the premise
without wearing a face covering is given this information; and

d. You must not prevent, or seek to prevent, anyone fromwearing aface covering while at your
premise

Part D. Notice period

This notice has effect until:
on 23 December 2020

If you believe that the requirements in the notice are no longer necessary before the end of the period
during which the notice has effect, then you may requestthata local authority designated officer carry
out a review of the notice.

Part E. Consequences of non-compliance with this Notice, and with the Regulations

Failure to comply with this Coronavirus Immediate Restriction Notice, without reasonable excuse, is
an offence under regulation 6 of the Regulations, punishable upon summary conviction by afine
(regulation 6(2)) or by afixed penalty notice (regulation 8).

Part F. Appealing against this Coronavirus Improvement Notice
In accordance with regulation 9 of the Regulations, if you disagree with all or part of this notice, or
the decision on a review of the notice, you can appeal to the Magistrates’ Court at:-

Essex Magistrates Court, Osprey House, Hedgerows Business Park, Colchester Road,
Springfield, CHELMSFORD, CM2 5PF

The appeal must be made within the period of 28 days beginning with—
0] the day on which the notice is issued in the case of an appeal against all or part of this
notice
(i) the day on which you were notified of the decision of the review in the case of an appeal
against a review decision

This notice is not suspended during an appeal. If you are not complying with the relevant statutory
provision(s) detailed in Part B, you may still be prosecuted.

When the appeal is heard, the Magistrates' Court may confirm, cancel or vary the notice.

Signed:
Date: 21 December 2020
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Name in Capitals: KATE PEARSALL
Colchester Borough Council

Rowan House, 33 Sheepen Road, Colchester, Essex, CO3 3WG
Telephone: 01206 282520 Email:  kate.pearsall@colchester.gov.uk

If you are not sure of your rights or the implications of this Notice, you may want to
seek independent legal advice

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS CORONAVIRUS IMMEDIATE RESTRICTION NO-
TICE, WITHOUT REASONABLE EXCUSE, IS AN OFFENCE
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